ATIONS CERD

Di str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
of all Forms of 25 March 1997
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fiftieth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1210t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 19 March at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Draft concl udi ng observations concerning the seventh periodic report of
Guat emal a

Draft concludi ng observations concerning the ninth periodic report of
Luxenbourg

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 15963 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1210

page 2

Draft concl udi ng

CONTENTS (conti nued)

observations concerning the

fourteenth periodic report

of Bel arus

Draft concl udi ng

observations concerning the

tenth to fourteenth

periodic reports

of Paki st an

Draft concl udi ng

observations concerning the

twelfth to fourteenth

periodic reports

of Bulgaria

Draft concl udi ng

observations concerning the

eleventh to thirteenth

periodic reports

of lraq




CERD/ C/ SR. 1210
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Draft concluding observations concerning the seventh periodic report of
Guat emal a ( CERD/ 50/ M sc. 8)

Par agr aph 8

1. The CHAIRMAN said that the word “voluntary” should be changed to
“vol unteer”.

Par agraph 9

2. M. CHI GOVERA suggested that the reference to “the Joint Comr ssion” in
the second sentence should be replaced by “a Joint Comm ssion”

Par agr aph 12

3. M. CHI GOVERA, supported by M. GARVALOV and M. ABOUL- NASR, said that
the |l ast sentence, which criticized the death penalty, should be deleted. The
puni shment provided by the law of a State reflected that State's perception of
the seriousness of a given crinme and could only be challenged if it was

all eged to be directed against a particular racial or ethnic group.

4. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said that the reference to the death
penal ty had been included because nenbers of the indigenous popul ati on were

t he ones nost often sentenced to that form of punishment, which nerely served
to exacerbate the clinmate of violence.

5. The CHAI RMAN said he took it that nobst nenbers of the Committee w shed
to delete the | ast sentence of paragraph 12.

Par agraphs 13-15

6. M. WOFRUM said that in order to avoid duplication with paragraph 15,
the words “articles 4 and 5" in paragraph 13 should be anmended to “article 5".
The t hree paragraphs should, in fact, be rearranged so that they followed the
order of the articles of the Convention

7. The CHAI RMAN, responding to a point raised by M. CH GOVERA, suggested
that, in paragraph 15, the words “incitenment to” should be inserted after
“prohibiting”.

Par agr aph 18

8. M. SHERIFIS said that a reference should be nade to the return of | ands
to their proper owners.

9. The CHAI RMAN suggested rewording the end of the first sentence:
following the word “continues”, it should read “especially with respect to
the return of |ands to indigenous people returning after the armed conflict”.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1210
page 4

10. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said that he could endorse that
anmendnent .

Par agr aph 20

11. M. WOFRUM said that a reference should be nade to the participation of
t he indi genous popul ation in Parlianent.

12. M. SHERIFIS suggested that a reference to their participation in the
public service should |ikew se be included.

13. The CHAI RMAN noted that the begi nning of paragraph 20 woul d accordingly

read: “It is noted with concern that adequate and proportionate participation
of the indigenous population in Parlianment, the public service and public life
at the national |evel has not been achieved.”

Par agr aph 22

14. M. GARVALOV said that in order to bring the style of paragraph 22 into
line with that of the precedi ng paragraphs, he suggested del eting the words
“the Commttee is of the view that”.

15. M. ABOUL- NASR asked what exactly was neant by the word “bilingual”.
Most of the | anguages spoken by the indi genous popul ation had no witten form
and he therefore did not see how they could be taught in school. Moreover, it
was inportant to be practical and to avoid generalizations. Surely the
Committee did not expect doctors in the faculty of medicine to be taught in
all the indigenous | anguages.

16. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said that all bilingual teaching posed
technical problens. But it was inportant for people not to | ose their sense
of tradition, which was conveyed by | anguage. The Governnent of Guatemral a was
al ready offering bilingual education, and the Commttee was nmerely asking it
to step up that effort.

Par agr aph 23

17. M. CHI GOVERA raised the same objection to the |ast sentence of
par agraph 23 as he had rai sed concerning paragraph 12.

Par agr aph 24

18. M. de GOUTTES suggested that another sentence should be added at the

end of paragraph 24 reading: “The State party is also requested to include in
its next report information on conplaints received and proceedi ngs comrenced
concerning cases of racial discrimnation.” That was the wording often used

in other reports.

19. M. CHI GOVERA said that the Committee m ght take as a nodel a phrase it
had enployed in relation to the United Ki ngdom

20. M. WOFRUM said it was inconsistent to say that articles 4, 5 and 6
were not being inplemented, as the concluding observations did at an earlier



CERD/ C/ SR. 1210
page 5

point, only to ask for information on their inplenmentation in paragraph 24.

He therefore proposed the follow ng wording: “The Commttee recomrends that
Guat emal a should fully inplenent articles 4, 5 and 6 of the Convention and
provi de i nformation on the neasures taken.” The second sentence woul d renain
unchanged.

21. M. CHI GOVERA said that as the Commttee had al ready nmade the same
recommendati on after consideration of the sixth report of Guatenmala, he was
inclined to | eave paragraph 24 as it stood.

22. M. ABOUL-NASR said that the reference to articles 4, 5 and 6 should be
del eted. The Committee should not be too specific in its approach

23. M. CHI GOVERA considered that since the Conmittee was repeating an
earlier recomendation, it should not delete articles 4, 5 and 6 fromthe
current text. |If nmenbers wanted a reference to be nmade to the inplenentation
of other articles, then further paragraphs could be inserted to that effect.

24. The CHAIRMAN said that there seemed to be support for amendi ng

article 24 and proposed the follow ng wording: “The Comrittee reiterates
that the State party should fully inplenent the Convention, particularly
articles 4, 5 and 6, and provide information on their application.” 1In a

m nor drafting change, the next sentence would then begin with the words "It
is further suggested”. The proposal by M. de Gouttes would then be inserted
at the end. He took it that the Commttee wi shed to adopt paragraph 24, as
amended.

Par agr aph 33

25. M. ABOUL- NASR questioned whether it was feasible for Cuatermala to give
publicity to the Convention “in all the major |anguages of the popul ation”.
He suggested deleting the words “all the”

Par agr aph 34

26. M. ABOUL- NASR said that the Comm ttee woul d set a dangerous precedent
by asking the State party to allow it to choose the nenbers of its del egation
What woul d happen if the del egation consisted of only one person?

27. M. SHERIFIS agreed. It was up to Governnents to decide the conposition
of their del egations.

28. M. WOLFRUM said that paragraph 34 was only naking a m|d suggestion; he
was in favour of retaining it.

29. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said that the issue was one of
substance. The suggestion in paragraph 34 did not constitute interference

in the internal affairs of a State party. It was the Conmittee's duty to
encourage the participation of persons directly affected. If the Commttee
recommended that the indigenous popul ati on should be represented in Parliament
and public Iife, he did not see why it should not ask for representatives of

t he indi genous popul ation to be present when the Conmttee di scussed matters
of concern to them



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 6

30. M. AHMADU suggested that the phrase “may wi sh to include” should be
inserted after “State party” in the first line, to replace the verb “invite”
in order to convey the idea that the State party was free to exercise its

di scretion on the conposition of the del egation

31. The CHAI RMAN proposed, in view of the State party's expressed wish to
i nclude a representative of the indigenous popul ation, that the sentence
shoul d begin “The Conmittee encourages the State party's plan to include a
representative”.

32. M. CHI GOVERA proposed that after the amendnent had been made, the
entire paragraph shoul d be included under section C (“Positive aspects”) of
t he docunent.

33. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) said he was willing to endorse the
proposal s made but wi shed to remind the Conmittee that, in the case of
Guat emal a, the indi genous peoples represented the majority of the popul ation

34. M. de GOUTTES supported the proposal nade by M. Chigovera.

35. M. RECHETOV said the issue was very inportant; the Commttee should
not hesitate to raise the question of representation of indigenous peoples.
Furthernore, for certain countries the presence of indigenous persons on

t he del egati on should be made compul sory. In any event, the Cormittee's
recommendati on should be presented in nmild, diplomtic | anguage so as to nake
it possible for Governnents to determ ne how they wi shed to respond to the
recommendation. In his view, noving the paragraph to section C would reduce
its effect to that of a coment, instead of a proposal

36. The CHAIRMAN said he had the inpression that a majority of menmbers were
in favour of making the point in section C. Such a decision would set a
precedent, but would not bind the Comrittee to using section Cin that way in
the future. He asked the Conmittee secretary to redraft the paragraph for
further consideration.

37. M. SHERIFIS and M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) proposed that, in view
of the connotations of the word “representative”, the Committee should wel cone
States parties' willingness to consider the inclusion of a nenber of the

i ndi genous popul ation

38. M. HUSBANDS (Secretary of the Conmmittee) proposed the follow ng
wordi ng: “The Committee wel cones the stated intent of the Governnent of
Guatemal a to include a nenber of the indigenous popul ation during the
presentation of its next periodic report.”

Par agr aph 36

39. M. CHI GOVERA said that since the paragraph under consideration was
maki ng neither a reconmendati on nor a suggestion, it should be placed under
section C, “Positive aspects”.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 7

40. M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) pointed out that the paragraph had been
pl aced in the general context of recomendations and suggestions, follow ng
the nodel used for previous recommendati ons and suggesti ons addressed to

Guat emal a.

41. M. ABOUL- NASR asked whether the Committee had in fact received an
official invitation to visit Guatenal a.

42. After a | engthy exchange of views on this question, in which

M. ABOUL-NASR, M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) and the CHAI RMAN t ook part,
M. YUTZIS (Country Rapporteur) assured the Conmittee that an invitation had
been extended to the Conmittee some years earlier. For various reasons, the
visit had not taken place.

43. M. AHMADU consi dered that the words “wi th appreciation” should be
deleted fromthe first line of the paragraph

44, M. RECHETOV suggested that the Chairman could take a decision on behal f
of the Conmittee if it was later decided that a visit would be nade.

45. The CHAIRMAN said that, as far as he recollected, the invitation had
been issued orally, in the first instance, by the representative of Guatenual a
during the consideration of the State party's previous report. It had later
been submitted in witten form but the visit had tw ce been postponed; the
Guat emal an Governnent was now renewing the initial invitation

46. M. ABOUL- NASR said that he could not agree to the inclusion of
par agraph 36 in the concl udi ng observations.

47. M. de GOUTTES said that the matter could be resolved by placing the
par agr aph under “Positive aspects” and rephrasing it to read: “The Committee
recalls with satisfaction the State party's invitation”

48. The CHAI RMAN said he woul d ask the secretariat to check the files for
evi dence of an invitation, and if it was determ ned that arrangenments for the
visit could be made and that financial responsibility for the visit had been
accepted, the concludi ng observations could include a paragraph to that
effect.

49. M. VALENCIA RODRIGUEZ said it was inportant to retain the paragraph
whet her or not it was ultimately placed under section C or E

50. The CHAIRMAN said he took it that the Cormittee agreed that he should
assune responsibility for the final decision on paragraph 36.

Par agr aph 37

51. M. ABOUL- NASR suggested that the words “in the present concl uding
observations” should be replaced by “during the consideration of the report”.

52. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the seventh periodic report

of Guatenmla as a whole, as anended, were adopted.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 8

Draft concluding observations concerning the ninth periodic report of
Luxenbourg (CERD/ C/ 50/ M sc. 11)

Par agraphs 15 and 16

53. The CHAI RMAN asked Mrs. Sadiq Ali (Country Rapporteur) to check on the
nunberi ng of the paragraphs to determ ne whet her paragraphs 15 and 16 were
m ssi ng.

Par agr aph 22

54. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to consider the anmendnent suggested
by M. Aboul -Nasr during the discussion of the concluding observations on
Guatenmal a, nanely, to replace “in the present observations” by “during the
consi deration of the report”.

55. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the ninth periodic report
of Luxenbourg as a whole, as anended, were adopted.

Draft concl uding observations concerning the fourteenth periodic report of
Bel arus (CERD/ C/ 50/ M sc. 12)

Par agraph 3

56. M. GARVALOV considered that the whol e paragraph should be deleted as it
was i nappropriate for the Conmttee to take up political issues and to attenpt
to bring themw thin the purview of the Convention

57. Ms. ZOU Deci agreed with M. Garvalov. At the very least, the first
line should be del eted.

58. M. SHERI FIS endorsed M. Garval ov's comments.

59. M. RECHETOV said that if the proposal to delete the paragraph was
approved, two points should neverthel ess be retained: the references to
pr of ound econom ¢ and social changes and to immgrants and asyl um seekers.
He therefore suggested the followi ng anendnent to the first sentence “The
actual political situation within the country, the profound econom c and
soci al changes induced by the dissolution of the former Soviet Union, and
the massive influx of immgrants and asyl um seekers are not conducive”.

60. The CHAI RMAN accepted the English interpreter's suggestion that the word
“present” should be used instead of “actual” in the first line of the text.

Par agr aph 11

61. M. CHI GOVERA suggested that the paragraph should be del eted

62. | was so deci ded.

63. M. ABOUL- NASR questioned whether the Committee, in its concluding
observations, adequately reflected responses made by States parties.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1210
page 9

64. The CHAI RMAN said that subjects of concern should be expressed in the
concl udi ng observations only if they remained after del egations had repli ed.

Par agr aph 16

65. M. SHERIFIS said that he would support retention of the paragraph only
if a simlar concern had been expressed about the very |arge nunber of States
parties in the sane situation

66. The CHAI RMAN considered that the question had been raised in the case of
many other, if not all, States parties in that situation

67. M. RECHETOV said that the essential point was nmade in the first
sentence; the second sentence, which was sonewhat specul ative, should be
del et ed.

68. M. de GOUTTES said that, although the second sentence responded to a
particul ar and often repeated concern of his own and related to a matter of
substance, he would agree to deletion on the grounds that simlarly detailed
comments had not been included in the Committee's observations on other
reports.

69. The CHAI RMAN agreed that the Committee should give States parties equa
treatment, but to the higher rather than the | ower conmon denom nator

70. M. SHAHI said he could join a consensus on deletion but recalled cases
in which the Conmittee had raised the issue of a |lack of public awareness of
rights and renedies.

71. M. de GOUTTES said that, although he could endorse the mnimalist
solution of deletion, the Conmttee would be setting its sights higher if it
kept the second sentence and subsequently included such wording inits
observations in the rare cases where a conparable situation arose and a State
party claimed that there had been no conplaints of discrimnation or
prosecution for racial offences.

72. M . CHI GOVERA consi dered that the second sentence clarified the context
of the Committee's first comment within the purview of the Convention, and
shoul d therefore be retained, whether or not it corresponded to past practice.
Such wording would be a starting-point for the Comrittee's consideration of
simlar situations in the future, to which it could equally be applied.

73. M. RECHETOV pointed out that the content of the second sentence was
reflected in the section “Suggestions and reconmendati ons”

74. M. ABOUL- NASR di sagreed with the assunption that few States parties
asserted that there were no cases or conplaints of racial discrimnation and
mai ntai ned that it was unfair to single out any State party.

75. M. GARVALOV said that equal treatnent would require the Comrittee to
reconsi der its concluding observations on the reports of all States parties
exam ned at the current session




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 10

76. The CHAIRMAN took it that, in the absence of agreenent, the Conmittee
wi shed to delete the second sentence. The conclusion to be drawn fromthe

di scussion, however, was that in future the Committee shoul d equally question
all States parties stating that there had been no cases or conplaints of
raci al discrimnation.

77. M. de GOUTTES endorsed that solution, bearing in mnd M. Chigovera's
comments for the future

Par agr aph 17

78. M. ABOUL- NASR said he believed that the representative of the State
party had responded to the issue raised in the paragraph

79. The CHAIRMAN said it was debatabl e whether a satisfactory answer had
been given; he understood M. Aboul -Nasr to be requesting deletion. 1In reply
to a question by M. Sherifis, he said that no convincing argunent had been
given as to the reasons for the difficulties encountered by persons wi shing to
study the Bel arusi an | anguage.

80. Fol | owi ng a comment by M. Shahi, he took it that the Comm ttee w shed
to del ete the paragraph.

Par agr aph 19

81. M. CHI GOVERA suggested that the paragraph, on the sane subject as
par agraph 11, should receive the sanme treatnment and be del eted.

Par agr aph 25

82. M. RECHETOV said that the recommendation for the State party to “study”
the reason for the absence of prosecution seened to inply a requirenment for it
to undertake research, sonething that was not demanded of other State parties.

83. M. de GOUTTES suggested that the wordi ng nmight be anmended to the effect
that the State party should provide a reply to the question about the absence
of prosecutions.

Par agr aph 30

84. M. GARVALOV asked whether it mght not be nore appropriate to request
an updating report rather than a conprehensive report.

85. M. ABOUL- NASR proposed that the paragraph should be del eted as
unnecessarily repetitive.

86. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the fourteenth periodic
report of Belarus as a whole, as anended, were adopted subject to ninor
drafting changes.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 11

Draft concl uding observations concerning the tenth to fourteenth periodic
reports of Pakistan (CERD/ C/50 M SC. 18)

Par agraph 4

87. M. GARVALOV (Country Rapporteur) said that a m nor anmendnment suggested
by one nenber had been omitted fromthe final text; he would submt it in
witing to the secretariat.

Par agraph 7

88. M. ABOUL-NASR said that the representative of the State party had
referred to the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts as being an i ndependent,

non- gover nment al body, and requested that its full title should be quoted in
t he paragraph.

Par agr aph 16

89. M. ABOUL- NASR suggested the insertion of the word “fully” before
“comply” in the second sentence.

Par agr aph 17

90. M. ABOUL- NASR said that the statenent anpbunted to a judgement on the
part of the Cormittee. It had asked for information and could not pass
j udgenent before having received it.

91. The CHAI RMAN pointed out that the Conmittee was nerely expressing
concern, the inplication being that any judgenent, whether positive or
negati ve, would ensue only after the information becane avail abl e.

92. M. GARVALQV, supported by M. WO FRUM proposed replacing the words
“Concern is expressed at the lack of” by “There is insufficient”.

Par agr aph 19

93. M. GARVALOV suggested that, since it had energed fromthe discussion
that some of the |anguages used in Pakistan were spoken rather than witten,
the latter part of the sentence, after “courts”, should be del eted.

Par agr aph 20

94. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the paragraph should begin with “As”.

Par agr aph 21

95. M. GARVALOV (Country Rapporteur), responding to concerns expressed by
M. ABOUL- NASR, proposed that the paragraph should be del eted.

Par agr aph 23

96. The CHAI RMAN, follow ng observations made by M. SHERIFIS, M. WJLFRUM
M. RECHETOV, M. CH GOVERA and M. de GOUTTES, proposed that the paragraph




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 12

shoul d be anmended to read: “The Conmmittee reconmends that the State party’s
prohi bition of discrimnation be brought into line with article 1
par agraph 1, of the Convention.”

Par agr aph 24

97. The CHAIRMAN said that the correct title of the Commi ssion on Human
Ri ghts woul d be inserted after consultation with the Permanent M ssion of
Paki st an.

Par agr aph 26

98. M. ABOUL- NASR suggested that “while appreciating the concern not to
encourage ethnic or group differences and distinctions” should be inserted
after “The Conmittee”

Par agr aph 27

99. M. ABOUL- NASR proposed that “as avail able” should be inserted before
“information”.

Par agr aph 28

100. M. GARVALOV (Country Rapporteur) suggested that “inplenent” should be
repl aced by “give effect to”.

Par agr aph 31

101. M. de GOUTTES considered that the Cormittee should al so ask for
i nformati on on sentences handed down by the courts in respect of persons found
guilty of racial discrimnation

102. M. ABOUL- NASR suggested that that request should be made in
par agr aph 35.

Par agr aph 32

103. M. GARVALQOV (Country Rapporteur), responding to observations made by
M. ABOUL- NASR, proposed that the begi nning of the paragraph should be
reworded to read: “The Committee reconmends that the State party, inits
efforts in the field of human rights educati on and awareness, continue to pay
attention also to the establishnment”.

Par agr aph 35

104. The CHAI RMAN said that paragraph 35 would reflect the request for
i nformati on on sentencing nentioned by M. de Gouttes.

105. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the tenth to fourteenth
periodic reports of Pakistan as a whole, as anended, were adopted.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1210
page 13

Draft concl uding observations concerning the twelfth to fourteenth periodic
reports of Bulgaria (CERD/ C/50/ M sc. 23)

Par agraph 9

106. M. ABOUL- NASR suggested that “credi ble” should be deleted fromthe
fourth sentence.

Par agr aph 10

107. M. ABQOUL- NASR proposed that “nunerous” should be deleted fromthe first
line.

Par agr aph 13

108. M. AHMADU suggested that the final sentence should be del eted.

Par agr aph 14

109. M. WO.FRUM (Country Rapporteur), responding to concerns raised by
M. Aboul -Nasr, said that reference to the situation of the Turks was inplicit
in several parts of the draft concluding observations.

110. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the Conmittee should recomrend the State
party to provide “such statistical data as is available”.

Par agr aph 16

111. The CHAI RMAN proposed that the first sentence shoul d be del eted.

Par agr aph 20

112. M. WO.FRUM (Country Rapporteur), in response to an observation nmade by
M. ABOUL- NASR, proposed that “remedy” should be replaced by *procedure”

113. M. RECHETOV, supported by M. ABOUL-NASR, said that, before the text
was adopted as a whole, he wished to stress the fact that he disagreed with
paragraph 11 of the draft concludi ng observations: he did not believe that
the prohibition of political parties on ethnic, racial or religious grounds
amounted to a violation of the right to establish political parties in
general. The Comrittee was al so wong to nake a direct criticismof the
Constitution of a State party.

114. The draft concludi ng observations concerning the twelfth to fourteenth
periodic reports of Bulgaria as a whole, as anended, were adopted.

Draft concluding observations concerning the eleventh to thirteenth periodic
reports of lraqg

115. M. WO.FRUM (Country Rapporteur) said that nenbers of the Committee had
made many suggesti ons concerning the text on Iraq, which he would not have
time to collate before the end of the session. He therefore suggested that



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1210
page 14

the draft concl udi ng observati ons should be left pending until the fifty-first
session in August, which would still |eave enough tinme for themto be included
in the report to be subnitted to the General Assenbly.

116. M. ABOUL-NASR agreed with M. Wl frum s suggestion

117. M. RECHETOV, supported by M. CH GOVERA, said that if that course of
action was taken, it would be the first time that the Cormmittee had ended its
sessi on wi thout adopting concludi ng observations on a State that had reported
to it during the session. That would be difficult to explain and woul d
reflect badly on the Conmittee. It should therefore take a vote on whether to
defer the adoption of the draft concludi ng observati ons concerning Irag.

118. The proposal to defer consideration of the draft concludi ng observations

concerning lraqg was adopted by 12 votes to 2, with 1 abstention.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p. m




